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CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . . (gavel) . . . Aloha and good morning. Welcome to the Public Works
and Facilities Committee meeting of the County of Maui, County Council. Today is
October 29, 2008, and we are starting at approximately 9:06 a.m. I am Co-Chair, Member
Medeiros. I'll be presiding over the meeting this morning. We have two items on our agenda,
PWF-93 and PWF-83. Before we progress forward, I'd like to introduce the Members that are
here. We have our County Council Chair, Mr. Hokama. Thank you for being here.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Morning. And we have our County Council Vice-Chair, Mr. Mateo, here.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning, and thank you for being here. Excused from our
Committee meeting this morning is Co-Chair Victorino and Member Pontanilla. Also assisting
us in this morning's meeting are members of the Administration. We have Director Cheryl
Okuma from the Department of Environmental Management; and Director, would you assist
me in introducing your assistant? . . . (chuckled) .. .
MS. OKUMA: Yes, of course. Thank you, Committee Chair, Council Members. With me is Scott
Rollins. He is our planning engineer with the Wastewater Reclamation Division.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you for that introduction, and thank you for being here. From the
Department of Corporation Counsel, we have Mr. Kushi here to advise us.
MR. KUSHI: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning, Mr. Kushi. And from our Committee Staff, we have our
Secretary, Pauline Martins; and also our Legislative Analyst, Mr. Scott Jensen. This morning,
first of all, invite all of you here. We have one member in the gallery and we welcome those
watching us on Akaku. And we are going to proceed forward, but before we do that, we want
to remind the Members and people in the gallery to please turn off your cell phones, put it on
either vibrate mode or silent, or any other devices that may go off during these proceedings and
we thank you for your cooperation.
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PWF-93 UTILITY EASEMENT FROM KAI ANI VILLAGE, LLC (SOUTH KIHEI ROAD)
(C.C. No. 08-236)

CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: First off on our agenda this morning will be PWF-93, and I'm gonna read the
description of our PWF-93, which is Utility Easement from Kai Ani Village, LLC (South Kihei
Road). And this is, the Committee is in receipt of the following: 1. County Communication
No. 08-236, from the Director of Environmental Management, transmitting a proposed resolution
to accept dedication of an easement for sewerline connection purposes, from
Kai Ani Village, LLC, consisting of approximately 525 square feet along South Kihei Road,
between Lipoa Street and Welakahao Road, Kihei, Maui, TMK: (2) 3-9-02: portion of 091 (the
easement area); 2. Correspondence dated October 22, 2008, from the Department of the
Corporation Counsel, transmitting a revised proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING
DEDICATION OF A UTILITY EASEMENT OVER, UNDER, ACROSS AND THROUGH
PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS TAX MAP KEY NO. (2) 3-9-002:091 (PORTION), ALONG
SOUTH KIHEI ROAD, PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.44.015, MAUI COUNTY CODE". The
purpose of the revised proposed resolution is to accept dedication of the easement area for sewer
line connection purposes.
And at this time, the Chair would like to provide opportunities for public testimony. And so, and
I'd also like to say that the guidelines for public testimony this morning is you'll have three
minutes to testify and then to conclude. We'll also allow members of the public wishing to
testify that, if you wish to testify before your item comes up, you're welcome to do so. If you
want to wait until your item is discussed, then you can testify at that time.
I have one member of the community signed up to testify on PWF-83, Mr. Hugh Starr.
Mr. Starr, would you like to testify at this time or wait until the item comes forward?
MR. STARR: I prefer to wait. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. Do we have anyone else in the gallery that has not signed up
for public testimony that would like to testify at this time? Seeing no one come forward,
Members, without objections, I'd like to close public testimony on PWF-93.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members; so ordered. At this point of our proceedings, I would
like to ask the Director, Ms. Okuma, to give us an overview of this item.
MS. OKUMA: Thank you, Committee Chair, Council Members. We are here today on a proposed
resolution to accept dedication of an easement for a sewer line and manhole for connection
purposes from Kai Ani Village. And, basically, the purpose of this is to address obtaining an
easement for that sewer manhole and sewer line, which is currently outside of a recorded
easement. I would like to, at this point, turn this over to Scott Rollins, and he can provide you
with further technical details.
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MR. ROLLINS: The sewer in question is along South Kihei Road and is adjacent to an easement that
was recorded about 2002 for a drainage project that was done by the Department of Public
Works. When the current project was undertaken, when we reviewed the plans, we noted that
the sewer was actually outside this easement and asked for an extension of the easement.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Does that complete your comments this morning, Director?
MS. OKUMA: Yes.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you for your comments. At this time, Members, I would like to open
up the floor for questions of the Department or any of the resource administration
representatives we have this morning. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chair?
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, not really a question, but I would like to request that in the
future when the Departments submit these requests to Committee, that they provide us with a
map that will actually tell us something. This map is a square box that identifies the major
highway and it doesn't tell me an exact location in terms of a site or a specific location. So in
the future, just for our getting a better understanding of the location of these easement requests,
it really might be . . . it really will be a benefit to us.
MS. OKUMA: Thank you, Councilmember Mateo. We will do that by providing better information
in terms of location details. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director. Thank you, Member Mateo. Any further discussion
on this, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chair.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yes, Chair Hokama, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just quickly, for the Department, please. Is part, this easement that
is being presented to us this morning, it is because of a consolidation of lots and part of then,
the improvements required from the consolidation efforts? I'm trying to understand. Or is this
part of the Department's overall improvements on South Kihei Road and that you folks now
need this easement? I'm trying to understand what is driving this request, please.
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MR. ROLLINS: Okay. Councilmember Hokama, this is an existing line. It's the County's main
sewer line that runs around down South Kihei Road. When the drainage project was done in
early 2001-2002, this line was relocated out of the road and slightly out of the road
right-of-away. An easement was recorded at the time, but it did not include the physical
location of the sewer line. So when this development project came through, we noted that and
asked the developer to dedicate this small easement to cover that oversight.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So we actually went and did work on private property with no
formal approval?
MR. ROLLINS: I'm sure they had . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just be candid with us. Just be candid with us.
MR. ROLLINS: I'm sure they had approval to do work at the time. It may have gone outside the
boundaries that were noted at the time, however.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And this is our project. Yes, is that correct?
MR. ROLLINS: The line was relocated with the Public Works project at the time. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So, as my understanding is, we are looking, I'm just trying
to get very clear on. We are looking at two easements, Department?
MR. ROLLINS: No, we are looking at one easement at the, right now. There was a previous
easement that was recorded.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Which was the previous--easement 8?
MR. ROLLINS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And 8A is now the new easement that we are being requested for
approval?
MR. ROLLINS: Correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. And then just one very minor question for the
appropriate, either Mr. Kushi or the Department. We see a lot of documents that come before
us similar to this. I am just wondering, you know, what is the standard? Sometimes, we see
that we do this for the sum of $1, sometimes not. Today, we see it for the sum of $10. I've
seen it for the sum of $100. Is there not something consistent that the County does or is it we
flip a coin and say okay. For this one ,we will ask them for $1. For this one, we'll flip the coin,
oh it comes up $10. What is the basis of how we set the amount of consideration? Is it an
arbitrary number? Is it something that must take care of recordation fees? What is it based on?
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I know we need to have an exchange of a transaction to complete the full process, but I'm just
wondering how we settle on the consideration amount please.
MR. KUSHI: Yes.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Corporation Counsel Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, Mr. Chair. Chair Hokama, it's usually between, I've seen some $1 and $10. But
what in essence it is, it's a gift. It is just a dedication. And in drafting documents of, instead of
saying it is a gift, they put $1 or $10, and other good and valuable consideration. Some
documents do state the actual amount. If we were to, if some private party were to purchase an
easement from us. And when it comes down to recording these things, the Bureau of
Conveyances, they would look, you know, what is the actual consideration and I think if it is
$100 or less, there is none.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. I think this is the first time that we've been
explained how we come up to the amounts, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: And that's a good question, Member Hokama. And I think to kind of cover
the basis on that, the continuation of that sentence also said other valuable consideration to it
paid to the County of Maui. So I guess if it's more than $10 or whatever, that it's covered
seemingly by the rest of that sentence. Thank you for that question. And Members, any other
further questions on this item?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just one quick one, please.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yes, Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is there any additional work that needs to be done, Department?
Everything, this is just a final step that is needed to get this squared away, please?
MR. ROLLINS: Yes. This is the final step for the easement.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Hokama. Any further discussion? Seeing none. At
this time, the Chair would like to give its recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Please.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend
adoption of the revised proposed resolution and the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So moved.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: It's been moved by Member Mateo, seconded by Member Hokama. Any
further discussion? Seeing none, call for the question. All in favor of the motion, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Any opposed? No.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Hokama and Mateo; and Co-Chair
Medeiros.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Pontanilla and Co-Chair Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION OF REVISED RESOLUTION AND FILING OF
COMMUNICATION.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: The motion passes. Three ayes with zero noes and we have two Members
excused, Co-Chair Victorino and Member Pontanilla. Thank you, Members, for that. We will
now move to the next item. And thank you, Department, for being here. And we'll allow the
next Department to come down, the Department of Public Works. We have Director Milton
Arakawa. Good morning, Director.
MR. ARAKAWA: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. I want to be sure we introduce the Director, Milton Arakawa, from
the Department of Public Works.
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PWF-83 AMENDING CHAPTER 18.04, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO
SUBDIVISION GENERAL PROVISIONS (C.C. No. 08-155)
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: We are now on item PWF-83. PWF-83, Amending Chapter 18.04, Maui
County Code, Pertaining to Subdivision General Provisions. The Committee is in receipt of the
following: 1. County Communication No. 08-155, from the Director of Public Works,
transmitting a proposed bill to amend various sections of Chapter 18.04, Maui County Code,
pertaining to subdivision general provisions; 2. Correspondence dated October 3, 2008, from the
Director of Public Works, transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 18.04, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO
SUBDIVISION GENERAL PROVISIONS". The purposes of the revised proposed bill are to:
(1) limit lot line adjustments to two lots; (2) clarify differences between a condominium lot and a
subdivision lot; (3) update the Maui County Code with the correct name of the Department; and
(4) allow the Director to recognize a separate lot in certain instances. So, at this time, Members,
I will open it up for public testimony. And first on the list testifying on PWF-83 is Mr. Hugh
Starr. Mr. Starr, good morning and thank you for being here.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. STARR: Good morning, Chair Medeiros. Thank you very much. Council Chair Hokama and
Councilmember Mateo, good morning. My name is Hugh Starr. I'm from Makawao and I'm
testifying on two aspects of the proposed PWF-83. I am sorry, I don't have written testimony. I
kind of play it by ear and if I need to later, I will. First, I will say that I noticed that attorney
Greg Garneau did submit written testimony and for the sake of saving the trees, I concur with a
lot of what he's talked about in his testimony. I think he's covered a lot of the relevant technical
points, not all, but a lot of them and I'm in concurrence with what he's shared with you. With
respect to the consolidation resubdivision proposal, maybe just, what I see is happening here is
basically a clash between the old titles of Hawaii and the Subdivision Ordinance. You know
when the original titles were created in the 1850s and the Subdivision Ordinance was created in
1960, I guess, or '64, somewhere like that, and we're selecting the date of July 3, 1951, and
everything before that, would be considered, you know, differently, in a way, than everything
that's been subjected to the Subdivision Ordinance. But these old lots, kind of reflected the
culture back in the 1850s, 60s, 70s, and what we're seeing here with this, what was known, what
is known as Ordinance 2372, which was passed in the early 90s, 1990s, was a response to
struggling with getting these old grants and land commission awards to, into the present day, if
you will. And, the case, the specific case, as I understand it, that prompted the creation of
Ordinance 2372 was a quiet title action out in Kaupo. In fact, it included Councilmember
Baisa's husband's family, the Baisas. They had a portion of land out there. They owned an
undivided interest with others and they also had multiple lots. That action, as I understand it,
prompted the need to create an ordinance that allowed you one time, not always, but one time, to
reconfigure old lots into a more manageable configuration that reflects the needs of the lifestyles
of today. Because, you know, in 1850, they had bullock trails, you know, horse trails, you know,
that kind of thing. So they didn't pay attention to the same physical constraints, social
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constraints that we face today. So, it's a difficult situation. That is why that ordinance was
created. There is nothing in the ordinance that said anything about two lots only. It isn't just a
matter of simply adjusting somebody's boundary because they happen to build a stone wall or a
hollow tile fence or they happen to build a house on the boundary. That isn't the point of it at all.
So, the idea of limiting 2372 one time, consolidation re-subdivisions to two lots, in my view,
defies logic. So I would hope that the Council would question the Administration as to why that
two lot limitation is being imposed. I notice I'm blinking red, may I?
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Starr. We are going to ask the Members if they have
any questions for you at this time.
MR. STARR: Okay.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: But I do want to say that we have in our binders, your August 6, 2008 letter,
which expresses some of the things you expressed this morning.
MR. STARR: Committee Chair, may I make one comment? I'm sorry. May I make one comment
about the separate determination process?
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. The rules allow us to give you three minutes to testify.
MR. STARR: I see.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, and urn.
MR. STARR: Okay. Well, thank you very much.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your presence and your testimony. Members, any
questions for Mr. Starr? Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Starr.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Also testifying this morning on PWF-83 is Mr. Randy Ragon? Is
that correct?
MR. RAGON: Yeah, that's correct.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Would you come forward please, identify yourself and any
association you may have with a group, or are you testifying for yourself?
MR. RAGON: My name is Randy Ragon. I'm testifying for myself, but I am also a board member in
Olowalu Mauka, in the Olowalu Subdivision. Thank you for the opportunity to testify,
Mr. Medeiros, and thank, you Council Members. The best way I can approach this is to kind of
explain what my experience has been and also the experience of the other owners in Olowalu
Mauka since we, we moved into the subdivision. And this relates to an approval based on
18.04.020C or Ordinance 2372, which was granted April 30, 2002, which is part of an approval
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that the Maui Planning Commission approved on an SMA Use Permit on September 12, 2000,
subject to 36 conditions, and condition No. 32 of that was highway access. What brought this
about was a couple of things that have happened. Probably the most significant, is we've had, I
think, in a period of eight months, we've had five, five accidents and one death in front of
Olowalu. Also, what has happened is we've had three fires in that subdivision. So, we had,
since the year 2000, we'd been promised as homeowners, that we would be, that there would be
a highway access. There would be speed reduction lanes, bike path put in the middle of the
subdivision or off the highway going into the subdivision. We were also promised that we
would have a fire road, you know, so we'd have more than one exit out of the, the subdivision.
The, Jim Riley, who is one of the principals of West Maui Land, came in and he gave us
construction plans, which was also given to the DOT. This was back about three years ago and
said that the highway improvements would be done within three years. What happened was
about six months ago, we had another meeting, the Olowalu Board, with Peter Martin, and I
specifically asked Peter, concerned about the accidents and the death, what was the progress
with the highway access. And then his response basically was to stand up, walk towards the
door and tell me "well how do you get off and on the highway", you know. And then said
"well basically, you know what, we don't know where the highway is going, we're not working
on this anymore", and then just walked out. "We're not doing it." So, that prompted me to go
down and pull out about 1,200 pages of documentation with the, starting with the DOT, going
to the Department of Public Works where I spoke to Lance. At the DOT, I spoke to Freddie
Cajigal. When I first mentioned it to Freddie, we pulled the documents and then we saw a
construction plan in there, he said "you mean it hasn't happened?" He was livid. When I went
to . . .
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Ragon?
MR. RAGON: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, would you conclude, please?
MR. RAGON: Okay.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: You have three minutes, so would you conclude?
MR. RAGON: Well, the bottom line is, you know, it's hard to do in three minutes. I'm going to
provide the Council. You know, I'm going to conclude with this. It's the same thing as what
the nation is experiencing in Washington when, you know, the consumer is the victim of
basically poor government and poor planning. When you have, you know, we're mad as hell,
okay? People are dying. My wife's driving out of the subdivision as others are during fires
through flames. We go to the Council. We say what's going on here? The guy at the
Department of Transportation says well, you know, we did everything that we could. You
know, I guess we can't do anything now; but all we can do in the future is not approve their
plans. We go to the . . .

-1 0-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 29, 2008

CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Ragon, yeah, you have to conclude with a sentence please.
MR. RAGON: Okay. Well, you know what? I'm mad as hell, okay? That's my conclusion, okay?
You're cutting me off. All right. People are dying and I go to every one of your guy's
departments.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, Mr. Ragon. Yeah, I'm sorry.
MR. RAGON: The next place I'm going is the press!
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. RAGON: Okay? The Council has blown it, okay? The system doesn't work, and this ordinance
doesn't work!
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, Mr. Ragon. I think I've allowed you your time.
MR. RAGON: You guys haven't allowed me any time!
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: If you have written testimony, we'd appreciate it.
MR. RAGON: You're going to get it and the press is going to get it. People are dying!
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. RAGON: Okay.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you for your . . .
MR. RAGON: We're mad!
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony.
MR. RAGON: Okay. This thing doesn't work.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony.
MR. RAGON: This Council stuff that you guys are doing.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, any questions for Mr. Ragon? Seeing none, thank you for your
presence and for your testimony. Okay. Do we have anyone in the gallery that wishes to
testify that has not signed up or that has not had an opportunity? Would you want to testify,
ma'am? Okay. Would you come forward, state your name, and you can sign up after you give
your testimony.
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MS. KRUSE: Good morning. My name is Lorie Kruse. I also live in the Olowalu Mauka
Subdivision. I think to put it very succinctly, that we support the Public Works Department in
requesting that the ordinance allowing lot reconsolidation and alignment be amended to limit
the number of lots. The problem, from a practical, I understand historically how it was used,
but the practical aspect of allowing a developer to create a subdivision based on lot
consolidation and realignment has practical problems when it comes to the agencies, the
different agencies involved in the approval process and enforcement. And I think our
experience, as exemplified by the fact that an SMA permit was granted with 36 conditions,
No. 32 specifically related to access issues that never came to light, was, is an example of the
problem with allowing a developer to consolidate a large number of lots. Usually and in our
case, the landowners, the purchasers, were not informed that that was how the subdivision was
approved. So, many of the representations made to them by the developer in the sales process
did not come about in reality and the Public Works is bound, their hands are tied. They cannot
require the developer to then go forward and actually complete those improvements. I am at a
loss, though, as to how the Department of Transportation would have a requirement and a
concern that was expressed in a condition of the permit and then there was no enforcement of
that in the end. And I think that that really was a breakdown between the different departments
because there was not really a clear message that this subdivision was being approved based on
this ordinance and, therefore, Public Works was not going to actually enforce, you know, the
conditions. They had limits in their ability of enforcement. So, definitely the ordinance, Public
Works is on the right track. The ordinance does need to be amended to make sure that there is
interagency cooperation and enforcement of the provisions that are, you know, of a concern and
need to be, and factors that need to be mitigated as expressed in an environmental assessment
report when the subdivisions are being approved. There's definitely a problem. It's putting
public safety at risk, particularly with regard to fire issues and traffic issues. That's something
that we as homeowners in Olowalu would definitely like to see the Council take another look
at.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: If you remain there, I'll ask the Members if they have questions for you,
but thank you for your presence and your testimony this morning. Members, any questions?
Seeing none, oh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just have a quick question for the lady, please.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yes, Member Hokama, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My one question, my question, my first question to you is, when
you have shared your comments with us this morning regarding certain things were not
followed through . . . (end of tape, start IB at 9:36 a. m.). . . were made to you by whom, please?
MS. KRUSE: Well we have spoken to, we spoke to Lance in your office, and he explained to us, you
know, when we raised these issues that, you know, the EA had certain conditions attached to it,
specifically related to highway access and why were these not, you know, why were these not
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enforced. That is when it was explained to us for the first time that this subdivision was not
approved through the normal Subdivision Ordinance. That it was actually approved as a lot
consolidation and realignment which was somewhat shocking, to not only us, but to the other
homeowners, because that had never been disclosed to us. So it was assumed that this was
going to be a normal subdivision with oversight by the Public Works Department that certain
things would, you know, that roads would, as they are seen on the construction plans, would
actually be constructed and the infrastructure would be developed as the developer represented,
not only to us, but to the different departments in coming through the approval process. So
that's when we realized that well it's not really a Public Works issue. It may be a Planning
Department issue. And really who had the oversight responsibility for making sure the
conditions had been met is, is not entirely clear at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If I may ask you? The plans that you are referring to, was those
plans from the County department, or was that from the developer party that you bought your
property from?
MS. KRUSE: Well, it's our understanding, based on my husband's conversations with Fred at the
Department of Transportation, with regard to, I'm speaking specifically as to Condition No. 32
for the highway access. There are other conditions at issue as well. That with regard to that,
it's our understanding that the environmental assessment report identified traffic and
specifically ingress and egress issues as something that would need to be dealt with as part of
the development of the Mauka Subdivision. And at that point in time, the developer presented
construction plans to the Department of Transportation in order to meet their concerns. So it
was noted in the environmental assessment that the plans had been reviewed by the Department
of Transportation and met the Department's concerns. So that it never really, on the final
compliance report, there was no mention of a specific requirement that something in addition to
those plans needed to be done at the intersection where access to the subdivision would be
provided. There was a mention that the construction plans presented to the Department met
their concerns and that would be adequate.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. KRUSE: So then, you know, final, the final compliance report was accepted by the Planning
Commission and final subdivision approval was provided; however, the intersection was never,
never, never developed. There was no bond required because it's, you know, normally, during
the subdivision process, you either complete your improvements or you, you know, provide a
bond.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You forfeit the money that, yes . . .
MS. KRUSE: Right. But when you're getting approval for a subdivision under this ordinance for
reconsolidation and realignment, you don't have to comply with that provision is my
understanding, at least that's what we've been told.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So we can really appreciate your testimony this morning.
So we're very clear on the location of your concern. This is close to Olowalu Store, that
portion. Okay, help us understand the location, please.
MS. KRUSE: Sure. West Maui Land has a--I don't know if it's the parent company or, but is part of
their family of companies--Elua Associates actually owned and developed the makai
subdivision of Olowalu and the mauka subdivision. So there's two subdivisions, and we're
specifically addressing the subdivision that is on, you know, the mountain side of the highway.
The entrance currently is, you have to cross over the highway. There is no acceleration or
deceleration lane. So coming into the, coming into the subdivision, you cross over an area
that's been reserved for highway widening, and then an old cane road, and then just up a road.
It's not anything remotely similar to what was presented on the construction plans, is our
understanding. So it's very dangerous getting in and out of the subdivision. First of all . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Help us and I, yeah, and I know this area.
MS. KRUSE: Yeah, so it is the . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Give us some landmarks then, got existing landmarks along . . .
MS. KRUSE: There is the estate that is for sale along ocean side of the highway is directly across
from it and it is before Chez Paul Restaurant.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Just before Chez Paul?
MS. KRUSE: Yeah, as you're headed towards Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, okay.
MS. KRUSE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So we're looking at the Maalea side of Chez Paul's Restaurant and
the . . .
MS. KRUSE: Right. In between the old village in Olowalu and Chez Paul and the Olowalu Store.
Right there. That's where the current access is and it is very difficult to get on and off that
highway from that subdivision and . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Especially if you're making a left turn.
MS. KRUSE: Yeah. And the traffic assessment report, if you look in the file, it noted that there were
problems at that intersection, that there was poor sight distance and there is. It is somewhat of
a speed trap. We've had a, you know, they were considering lowering the speed limit there for
a while as well. So you've had preexisting conditions there where it wasn't necessarily a safe
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area to enter and exit the highway before the development and then after the development. You
know, when you're putting homes in an area, where not only the number of homes, you know,
now they're allowing CPR up there. So not only do you have the number of lots that were
originally created, they're now being created into condominiums. So there could be twice as
many homes up there, with twice as many families trying to exit and enter the highway there.
So access, in terms of public safety, is a huge issue and we've already seen five accidents and
one death this year alone. And that's not to say that, okay the subdivision is responsible for
that, but you are putting members of the public who live in that subdivision directly in the path
of what is a known area that is a dangerous area of highway and there is no acceleration and
deceleration lines. And yet, I see it's very possible that in the future, if there is another accident
involving someone coming in and out of that subdivision, that the County will be sued as well.
So, you know, it is an area of public concern. It should be an area of concern for the County as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh, uh-huh. But we're definitely dealing with multiple
jurisdictions.
MS. KRUSE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because Mr. Cajigal is the Maui representative for the State
highway since the main road that we're talking about that you're trying to get access to has, is
State jurisdiction. Of course, we have on the subdivision portions and the housing side, yeah,
we have some responsibility. We have jurisdiction over those areas. But thank you very much
for making us aware of this serious concern.
MS. KRUSE: Right. Thank you very much.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your
presence and your testimony. If you could sign up with the, thank you very much. Once again,
anyone in the gallery from the public that wishes to testify that has not had an opportunity to
testify, come forward. Seeing none, at this time, Members, without objections, the Chair would
like to close testimony on PWF-83.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. So ordered. At this time, we proceed with this item and I would
like to ask Director Milton Arakawa for an overview regarding this agenda item. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item pertains to a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 18.04, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING
TO SUBDIVISION GENERAL PROVISIONS". This bill was last discussed at the Public
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Works and Facilities Committee meeting of August 6, 2008, and at that meeting, the Committee
felt that the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee should be given the opportunity to
review the bill. Also, the Committee requested additional detail on the procedure for
recognition of separate lots. So, by way of background, let me, let me summarize several
purposes of the bill and what has transpired since that initial Committee meeting. First, the
proposed bill would limit lot line adjustments to two lots. This allows for minor lot line
adjustments between two abutting lots without being subject to normal subdivision
requirements. The ordinance was intended to allow a subdivision for minor lot line adjustments
in which the subdivider would not be required to comply with all of the requirements of the
subdivision code. Just an example to illustrate the point. If your neighbor, for instance, has a
wall that encroaches two feet into your property along the side property line, the code would
simply allow you to adjust the lot line rather than require your neighbor to tear down the wall.
However, the current language of the code allows lot line adjustments for two or more lots. As
may happen, there are landowners who own more than two abutting lots or who may acquire
more than two abutting lots. The current language of the code would allow a redrawing of the
lot lines without doing the necessary improvements. So, it is theoretically possible to have an
unlimited number of lot lines to be redrawn without installing these necessary improvements. I
have circulated a graphic and hypothetical example of how lot lines could be redrawn to create
a subdivision without the required improvements and in this hypothetical example, I just used
four lots. We believe that the current language, which allows redrawing of the lot lines, which
basically creates de facto subdivisions without, what this does is it creates de facto subdivisions
without being subject to all of the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance. So we are
proposing that only two abutting lots be allowed to do these lot line adjustments. I would also
emphasize that the bill does not prohibit subdivisions of lot line adjustments for three or more
lots. If these types of proposals come up, they would only be required to go through the normal
subdivision processes which would require installation of infrastructure improvements and
comply with other applicable regulations such as community plan and zoning. This leads into
the Committee's question about the procedure for the recognition of lots. We have proposed
language in the bill that provides additional guidance to subdividers and this is shown in
Section 18.04.020, letter H of the bill.
There are situations where lots have been created prior to the establishment of the Subdivision
Ordinance. As was noted in earlier testimony, this may include things like kuleana lots,
poalimas and land grants. There also may have been other types of lands which may have been
conveyed and reconveyed prior to the establishment of the Subdivision Ordinance. Over time,
the properties may have been bought and sold a number of times by various owners but they
were never subdivided. In these types of situations where we've come across them today, we
feel it's fair to recognize these lots as part of the Subdivision Ordinance. I would note that the
date that's noted in the proposed revision, July 3, 1951, in Section H, is the earliest possible
date we can use as the initial establishment of the Subdivision Ordinance. So, basically, what
we're saying is that anything that occurred before this date would be, could be grandfathered;
but anything after that, should be subject to the Subdivision Ordinance. Another purpose of the
proposed bill is to clarify differences between a condominium lot and a subdivision lot. While
there may be lots created by a horizontal property regime regulated by the State of Hawaii, the
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proposed amendments are intended to clarify that these lots do not supersede the requirements
of the subdivision code or the zoning. For instance, a two-acre lot in the County agricultural
district is allowed two farm dwellings per lot of which one shall not exceed 1,000 square feet of
developable area. The bill would clarify that while two one-acre lots may be created by the
horizontal property regime, the owners would not be allowed to build any additional zonings
allowed by the zoning. In other words, they would not be allowed to subvert the subdivision
code and the zoning by doing a CPR. The third purpose of the bill simply updates the code
with the correct name of the Department. I would note that this bill was placed on the agenda
of the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee for its scheduled meetings in September
and October; however, the SESC was unable to conduct a meeting due to lack of quorum on
both occasions. While their comments may be helpful, we also note that this bill pertains to
subdivision processing rather than subdivision standards. So while input from the Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee may be helpful, we do not believe it is required. We have
transmitted a revised bill with our transmittal of October 3, 2008, entitled "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 18.04, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO
SUBDIVSION GENERAL PROVISIONS". The Public Works and Facilities Committee's
review and consideration of the proposed bill is respectfully requested.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director. Members, the floor is open for questions for the
Department or Corp. Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One . . .
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yes, Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair, thank you. Just a question for the Director please, for
Mr. Arakawa. In your opening comments to us regarding some of the potential situations that
could occur and why your proposal is being requested for us for approval, was an example of a
structure that went two feet into another property, if I heard you correctly, Mr. Director. And
that part of this would allow you to redraw the line? So is, is that, was that, did I hear that
correctly? I just need to get some verification. Is that what you have shared as the illustration?
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilmember Hokama. That's the original intent of the bill where there
was possible encroachments between two properties and if there are minor types of
encroachments, it basically exempted these types of lot line adjustments from doing all of the
necessary subdivision improvements. However, the problem is that the code allows two or
more and there's no absolute limit, and that is what we were trying to basically curb at this
point, is to limit the amount of lot line adjustments that can occur.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And I can understand maybe under the old surveying
techniques and equipment we had, you know, with the new GPS, and, what have you, even on
Lanai we had to make adjustments in the old, old, old lot line designations on our maps, so I
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can appreciate that. What disturbs me is that we should try and help eliminate potential
encroachments, Mr. Chair. Especially if it went, if it went properly through a review process
with appropriate recognition of setbacks that we have in our code, we shouldn't be having
structures that are encroaching over other people's property, because the setbacks should be
sufficient enough to have that spacing between the property lines. And I know it happens, but it
disturbs me that we're not catching it before it happens. So that's one comment I have. The
other comment, question I have is that in your hypothetical illustration, Mr. Director, that we
have before us this morning, you have shown how four existing lots could be reconfigured with
this approval of your revised proposal and create those four then, I guess it would be looked at
as sellable lots, and if sold, would not require improvements? Otherwise would not have to be
required because there was only would be one, you know, and on the old existing example you
show us? I don't know what the property owner of those small, and again, I don't know if they
even make certain lot size minimums or standards, that certain improvements would never have
to be required. So, and again, I heard testimony today of how some of those requirements that
would have imposed, would have addressed outstanding issues of whether it be safety or
mitigation of drainage or whether it be just for proper access. You have any comments that you
want to share with the Committee, please?
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, Councilmember Hokama. The graphic that I circulated, that hypothetical
application of lot line adjustment involving more than two lots, that's an example of what could
be done under the current code. We are proposing to eliminate that with the proposed revision.
Under the current code, you could do a lot line adjustment to basically have four sellable lots
with the redrawing of the lot lines. There would be no community plan or zoning review and
there would be no subdivision requirements that would be imposed on that subdivision. So, the
testimony that you heard today is not unusual in the sense that after the lots are sold to the
individual owners, they are going to be finding that many of the improvements are not done
and it's basically problems that need to be cleaned up after the fact. So, our proposal here . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can you just stop right there, please? I'm sorry to interrupt you.
Clean up after the fact? Who is then responsible to clean it up after the fact? The County of
Maui? The developer that sold the lot to the individual new property owners? The property
owners? Another governmental jurisdiction? Who bears the burden to mitigate and take care
of it after the fact?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, the proposed language that we have would basically make the subdivider or
require the subdivider to put in all of the required improvements. Under the existing code, the
lots can be subdivided without putting in all of the improvements. So the subdivider, the
original subdivider, has done the subdivision in accordance with the existing provisions of the
code. And it's basically government that's going to be left doing the improvements or trying to
address the concerns. And so that's the exact problem that we are trying to alleviate here with
the proposed improvements.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that would be unless it is within an SMA area that would
require a review by the Commission that can impose conditions of approval and that would be
enforceable conditions, if I understand it right. Is that correct, Mr. Kushi, as our attorney this
morning? You know if it's in an SMA zone, I'm assuming whatever occurs in the development
of these adjusted lots, because it's for sale and then I'm assuming people would like to put their
homes on it, would then go through a SMA procedure and the Commission who has the
authority under this County, is able to impose conditions that are enforceable for compliance?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, one moment. (NOTE: Speaking to Mr. Arakawa.) Mr. Chair, Member
Hokama, first you have to assume that the properties are within the SMA zone.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, if it is. If it is, that's my question, if it is within the SMA
boundary areas?
MR. KUSHI: You know, I'm not quite sure the subdivision process, itself, is subject to a SMA
review; but definitely the improvements would be, building permits, et cetera, unless it's a
single-family dwelling.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, so just to redo the subdivision in this example, I would not
need any SMA review. It's only when then a property owner that wishes to construct an
improvement, whether it be a home or others, that would require a Planning Commission
Review regarding, within the SMA boundary?
MR. KUSHI: Yes. Again, this hybrid, I call it a hybrid process, consolidation, resubdivision, two or
three, whatever you have. If you do that, according to existing code, then the requirements of
Title 18 will not apply except for some listed items here, yeah. But they need to comply with
the Title 19, which is the Zoning Ordinance and some other plan review and technical reviews
and payment of fees. The benefit for this process is that they are not, they don't need to comply
with the design standards or improvements, you know, and assessment, park assessments,
et cetera. So this is the advantage of consolidating and resubdividing. As long as you start off
with two or three and you end up with two or three. What the Department here is trying to say
is that, limit it to two, and our office feels that this is really a policy call.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kushi. Chairman, thank you for this
opportunity.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Mateo, please.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Director Arakawa, in the August
meeting when this was discussed in Committee, out of Committee was the recommendation
that it be sent to the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee for comment and review.
And I understand, as you indicated, that you had put in on their September and October
agendas and because of lack of quorum, this Committee was not able to, to review this
particular amendment request from the Department. I'm still a little uncomfortable that no
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review was, in fact, provided by the Committee because I think that the whole intention of the
request was to get additional feedback from them. And secondly, Mr. Director, if you could,
please provide comment on the communication you received from Greg Garneau regarding his
review and comments on the proposed amendment.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Okay, Councilmember Mateo. As far as the comments by the Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee, I would note that we have had quorum issues with that
Committee. And also, the fact that the bill actually deals with more processing issues as
opposed to establishment of new standards, we feel that, you know, while their comments
certainly would be helpful, and we have given them an opportunity to provide comments, they
did not have quorum so that's why we are asking the Council to act on the bill. So that's why
it's back here. On your other question regarding Mr. Garneau's comments, I would note that
Mr. Garneau basically is arguing for additional flexibility on the part of the Administration as
far as allowing us to make the call as far as, you know, additional lot line adjustments and also
additional flexibility with regard to recognition of lots. We've addressed those issues and I
think what we're saying is that we would prefer to have more predictability in the code so that
everyone is clear up front what's going to be required of them. And that's why we drafted the
bill the way it is. I mean, I appreciate Mr. Garneau's concerns, but I believe that additional
flexibility is basically what kind of got us into this situation today. So our thought is, you
know, we just want more, more predictability, more restrictions basically in the original
language so that it is clear to all the subdividers what we are, you know, what is expected of
them.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. There's two particular areas that's been cited that would
be of interest primarily to me. One would be the reference that you spoke about briefly, which
is the reference to kuleana lands and the second item would be the possibility of the generation
of takings. Could you, could respond to both?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as kuleana, the issue on kuleana lands, as you know, kuleana lands can be
established through acquired title actions or sometimes kuleana lands . . . clearing throat .. .
excuse me. Sometimes kuleana lands can be, you know, bought; and you know, re-bought, as
you say. . . . (end of tape, start 2A at 10:06 a.m.). . . re-conveyed over time so that the owners
are not the original owners and then they're not native Hawaiian, necessarily. If you look at it,
you know, who the owners are today. So, I mean basically, what we're saying, is that we just
need to have a process to, a fair process to recognize which are lots in the subdivision code and
which are not; and we're basically using that July 3, 1951 date as the cutoff. If there are some
cases that may need judgment, the bill basically calls for rules to implement the recognition of
lots. What I'm thinking is that perhaps we need to do some sort of an appeal or appeal process
to the Department's decision or even like a variance from the Department's decision to, to
address these, you know, odd type of situations that may come up other than, you know,
straight kuleana properties.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And if you could, if you could speak to the potential of takings?
MR. ARAKAWA: Again, as far as takings, you know, if it occurred after the Subdivision Ordinance
occurred, you know, took place, it really should have been subdivided. If it was not, then,
again, you know, we'd have to go through the, whatever its appeal process or some other
process to either recognize it or not recognize it. So, I understand Mr. Garneau's concern about
all of these other types of situations that may come up, but I believe it's difficult to put down all
of those situations that may come up, in the code. We may have to deal with those more by
rule or on a, you know, hearing basis or on an appeal basis.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So because of the multiple variables that could be involved in terms,
because there is director's flexibility involved in the ordinance as well, so it is conceivable that
an addition amendment would be an appeals process to address those multiple potentials?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, you'd have to, we'd have to stick to whatever is in the code, obviously, and
we cannot go outside of what's in the code. So it's kind of up to the Committee how strict or,
you know, liberal you want to be as far as what kind of authority you want to grant to the
Department on the recognition of lots. What we're suggesting is that, you know, it be pretty
restrictive and if there are these types of other situations that may come up, it should be handled
either by rule or through an appeal process.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Mateo. Any further questions, Members? I have a
few questions, Director. In our binders, which have been referenced somewhat so far, you
know, we received four letters--one from Haleakala Ranch; one from Mr. Garneau, an attorney;
and from Hana Ranch; and from Mr. Hugh Starr. In reading through those correspondences,
they all raise issues and concerns about the proposed bill in its current form, and there seems to
be a consensus that they have the same concerns and issues. And one of, I think Member
Mateo brought up, one that concerns me too, about kuleana lands and, you know, beyond
kuleana lands, we also have areas, especially in Hana, that are hui lands that are owned by
several people but undivided interests. Can you tell me how such lands would be affected by
the proposed bill?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as those types of kuleana lands, we'd have to go through, I guess, still that
separate lot determination procedure as noted in the proposed bill. Exactly how it would affect
each property, I guess, would depend on the individual circumstances. I guess it's kind of hard
to answer your question in a general sense.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, I can appreciate that. The other concern that got my attention was in
Mr. Garneau's correspondence as someone who was part of a Blue Ribbon Committee that
drafted the Hawaii Condominium Law, Chapter 514B, HRS, his concern about condominium
unit as a lot for the purposes of Title 18, and also raising that question was the author of the
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Hana Ranch letter that the impact on condominiums, including traditional multi-family
condominiums. How will this proposed bill in its current form affect current condominiums?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, regarding, you know, Mr. Garneau's original letter, I know he raised
some concerns about condominium lot versus a subdivision lot. I did have a chance to talk
with him and I believe David Galazin also spoke with him about the intent of the bill and I
would note that in his latest letter, he did say that he's actually in support of the draft bill
including the amended definition for a lot, so, I believe his concerns regarding that have been
really addressed.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, well, thank you for that response. It seems like the consensus of the
four correspondences the Committee received was that they were requesting that they be able to
work with the Committee or the Department to address some of the concerns that remain that
they still haven't had enough opportunity to do. What would be your comments on those
requests?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, the proposed bill basically limits lot line adjustments to two lots and as I
mentioned, I think for larger landowners, the bill doesn't prohibit lot line adjustments for three
or more lots. It only requires that if you want to do lot line adjustments for three or more lots,
you go through the normal subdivision process. For large landowners, there is still a large lot
subdivision process that they can go through. A large lot is basically any lot that can be
subsequently resubdivided into four or more lots. And that allows for deferral of improvements
so that is also still on the books and the proposed bill does not affect that. There's also the
family subdivision portion of the code which is still in effect and we are not proposing any
changes to that. So any smaller lot landowners, you know, won't be affected by this bill
because family subdivisions still is in effect.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you, Director, for that response. And when you talked about
the impact or the possible impact on the current condominiums, also raised in one of the
correspondences was Ag condos, if you could explain to me what that would mean. I'm sorry, I
lost my place in the, that was asking that question, but I think it was from Mr. Garneau. Oh
yeah, Ag and land condo. What would that be and would there be any impact on that?
MR. ARAKAWA: All we are saying in this bill, as far as the definition of condominium lot and
subdivision lot, is that Chapter 5.14 is a State law which governs condominiums and they may
provide units or lots. It's basically forms of ownership that can be created. Our stance has
always been that they can cut up the ownership however they want, but they cannot subvert the
subdivision code and the zoning and that's all this bill is doing, is basically clarifying our intent
because the existing definition may be, could be clearer as far as our intent. So, we just want to
make that clear to subdividers and basically to the State that Chapter 5.14 and the subdivision
code will be two separate processes. And we just want to make sure that the State process does
not supersede the County's.
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CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director. So Members, any further discussion or questions for
the Department? At this time, the Chair is going to take a real short recess to talk to Staff and
we'll reconvene the meeting at the call of the Chair. Recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

10:18 a.m.

RECONVENE: 10:24 a.m.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . .(gavel). . . The Public Works and Facilities Committee meeting of
October 29, 2008, is now reconvened after the short recess. Thank you, Members, for that
recess. If there are no further discussions, Member Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, excuse me, if I may ask a question to the Director of the
Department, please?
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Certainly, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Director, in your new revised bill for an ordinance proposal, if
I can just get some clarification to understand better. Under Section 6, we talk about reserve
strips and just so that I have a good understanding, and the community if asked of me, I can
explain it properly. This reserve strip is decided by, by you and proposed by you, or this is a
proposal from the requestor of the resubdivision? And I'm just concerned because it says "for
future public use" and if this is something that is a creation by the redrawing of the lines and
makes the, then those lots, available for sale and development. Is it then the burden of this
County to take care of those future public improvements? Because it says "for future public
use" and is it still currently private property under the reserve strip provisions, please?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, the intent for making the change under that reserve strip
section and this is just the definition of "reserve strip", it was just to correct the name of the
Department from the Director of Planning to basically Director of Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: This is an old definition that predated the Charter change in the mid 90s which
basically changed the definition of -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MR. ARAKAWA: --I mean change the duties of zoning from Public Works to Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. But as your understanding, can you just then give us your
understanding of what this really is for us?
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MR. ARAKAWA: But basically as far as the bill, this bill is concerned, you know, we really didn't
even look at the reserve strip definition, per se. We, it was just changing the, making sure that
the reference to Director was correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: So there's no other change proposed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then, Mr. Chair, if I can ask Mr. Kushi, as our Corporation
Counsel this morning, if he can give us some comment for us to have a good understanding.
And again, you know, things have changed from, in the Planning Department, Public Works,
the Charter has been revised, whew, at least twice in my short tenure. I'm just trying to get an
understanding because, you know, on our maps, we have urban reserve and then now we're
talking about reserve strips and I am just wondering again from a land use perspective, if
there's something that the gentleman can share with us this morning, please.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Kushi? Oh, the Director is going to respond first.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. ARAKAWA: I can go over what the reserve strips are and basically the code, the existing
provision of the code, basically says, "Reserve strips shall be required when the Director
determines some strips to be necessary for the orderly future development of the community
according to either the general plan or projected future development in the area surrounding the
subdivision. The land composing such strips shall be reserved for future use and development
under conditions approved by the director." That's basically what Title 18 discusses as far as
reserve strips.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. And again, I just tied it in. You know, for me,
Mr. Chairman, because we did receive some interesting and serious oral comments this
morning, and in my reading of this, I am just wondering how or why certain things that, to me,
is logical improvements, and sensible and responsible improvements, if we are going to allow
part of this redrawing of lines to be able to be then sellable lots for home use or whatever
increase valuation to that parcel or lot, why we would not ensure that we mitigate then those
increased impacts in that subject area. And whether or not within this vehicle for, a bill for an
ordinance, if we should consider language that would either authorize the Director or the
Department, or as it says in other portions, "authorized representative", which I'm assuming
would be your Deputy? That's not necessarily true, Mr. Director? Because I don't know who
else would be your authorized representative.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm making assumptions and I'm asking you to either verify or
clarify for us.
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MR. ARAKAWA: I suppose the authorized representative would be, could be any member of the staff
that has been delegated to do the work.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So more than likely, if it's not your Deputy, who would have the
ability to make these determinations besides yourself, please?
MR. ARAKAWA: Probably I would refer it to Development Services Administration, so it would be
someone in DSA. That would be . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Nagamine currently?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Nagamine is the Administrator there now.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So if there is a fire that we need to light under somebody's
foot or hold somebody's foot accountable, that would be the person? I just want to make sure
that when, if we are asked to be accountable for our actions, that we can then be able to verify
who is making those decisions and ask why certain things were done.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well as . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Or ultimately, we just come back to your feet, Mr. Director,
. . .(chuckled). . . and hold it over the fire.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well ultimately, it's going to come back to me obviously. If you have some
concerns about any aspect of the subdivision itself, you know, it's going to come back to me.
Obviously, there are other agencies, . . . clearing throat . . . excuse me, other agencies that
review it, the subdivision applications. If it's concerning matters under their jurisdiction, then I
would basically talk with them as far as resolution of any issues.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Currently, to redo this redrawing of the line, is it basically just you
and your Department, or would Environmental Management be part of a review? Would
Planning still be part of this review prior to your final decision of whether to grant or
disapprove the redrawing of the line, Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: You are referring to under the proposed bill?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes. And tell me what is the, what is the change? Currently, they
are not required and under the proposed, they would be part of the review process?
MR. ARAKAWA: Under the proposed bill, where we're going to be limiting lot line adjustments to
only two lots, there is no Planning Department review. There basically is no other agency
review. It's just, redrawing of the line that is done by, by DSA. And that's why there's no
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improvements required. In fact, there's no access required. There's no community plan or
zoning checks, none of that sort.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. And I, and I just ask that because, if we redraw the line,
I'm assuming Finance would get involved because of the mapping adjustments. I would
assume that. Or tell me if I'm incorrect in my understanding please, because someone is going
to need to redraw the maps to have accurate TMKs, Mr. Chairman. And I would assume that it
would follow up with appropriate recordation at either Bureau of Conveyances or through the
State Land Court so that down the road, should someone question, are you sure that that's the
line, because what I see is this other line. So I'm just wondering, you know, what
governmental procedures would be required to ensure that we are fair to whoever eventually
becomes the property owner as well as those that may question title or the specific meets and
bounds of the parcels.
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. The applicants under the lot line adjustment would still have to submit the
preliminary plat and the final plat map and that's what is recorded and that's what goes to the
Finance Department for the tax maps.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. The line that eventually would be decided by you, our
County surveyors would then shoot the meets and bounds or someone else would provide the
service and pay for those requirements, Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: It would be the subdivider that actually does the maps and then we basically just
review it for accuracy.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And this would all be done by a licensed surveyor?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, thank you very much for this opportunity.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Hokama. I had a further question, Director. Because
you described as part of this, if there were some encroachments from one property to another,
that they could redraw the lines in order to mitigate that encroachment. If the encroachment
was established without a permit, would that also still apply?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, Councilmember Medeiros. Actually, the encroachments we're talking about
here are encroachments between two different private parties. So, how they decide to handle it
is really up to them and they don't. We're not saying they have to adjust the lot line. They
could simply remove the encroachment as an option too. But of course if the encroachment
involves the County, then of course, we would have to decide whether we want to have the
encroachment or have it removed as well. So it kind of depends on the parties involved.
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CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that explanation because yeah. So it's more an
opportunity that is available to private property owners to mitigate some kind of encroachment
between their properties. Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair, I . . .
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yes, Member Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. And this is about Lanai. Under Dole Company, Castle
and Cooke, we have a lot of legal non-conforming lots. And this was days of the old large lots
that Castle and Cooke did for employee housing. A lot of it was at that time termed for
bachelor employees that had intent to return to the fatherland. So now that we have people who
have chose to make Lanai and have made Lanai their home for generations, for a hundred
years, and they have two. They're, and they're adjacent, two legal non-conforming lots. R-1 in
our code says 6,000 square feet. Let's say, for example, they have one lot that is 3,500 and one
3,000. So, they want to build a, redo their home. So they're asking for consolidation of those
two legal non-conforming lots to make one legal lot. This would take care of my community's
ability to do that without undue financial hardship regarding improvements and other things
that the subdivision code would have required or that would not be even a consideration, Mr.
Director, in my example.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama. In the case of non-conforming lots, of course, we're
talking, you are going to have to apply for a building permit at some point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right, right. And currently, if the proposed plan straddles a
property line that they own both of, they're not allowed to build. Right? They not, they will
not be have, be able to receive an approved building permit because they're straddling a
property line, although they own both properties. Is that correct?
MR. ARAKAWA: You couldn't build a new dwelling today straddling the property line.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So they would have to come in for consolidation of those two legal
non-conforming lots because they're grandfathered in to make one legal now R-1 lot. By doing
that consolidation, I'm just wondering, does this proposal take care of that so that there's no
unnecessary hardship on those property owners?
MR. ARAKAWA: If you're talking about, well this bill only talks about a possible lot line adjustment
for the two lots. If it's non-conforming, it wouldn't go to any kind of Planning Department
review. It would just, they just need to resubmit the preliminary plat and the final plat.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm just saying that if this proposed bill for an ordinance would
address that type of situation that we have on Lanai? Or do I need to consider an amendment
or a revision to the proposed legislation that still takes care of the intent you're trying to
achieve, and we're working through this together, but also take care of my unique situation-MR. ARAKAWA: Well . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --of an old plantation designed community that needs to try and
deal with the current code?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, I think they could simply consolidate their properties into one. Or, this bill
only refers to the lot line adjustment, so really .. .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: They would still need to do a resubdivision?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. This bill really doesn't affect that particular situation. There may be other
existing provisions that would still apply, but this bill really doesn't affect that because it only
talks about the lots.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know what I'm saying, huh? That if it made logical sense, it
still does not ... (inaudible). . . that the line adjustment would be the removal of that line.
That's my adjustment. But again, that's why I'm asking you. If you tell me that it cannot be
done, you still need to do a whole resubdivision process, that's not the . . .
MR. ARAKAWA: No. That wouldn't be considered on this bill because it is basically. What you're
saying that it is a consolidation of two lots into one. So that's a little different from what we
are talking about in this bill with a lot line adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. That is why I asked the question. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Mateo, any further questions?
Okay. Hearing none, the Chair would like to say first that I want to thank the Director because
I know he's worked hard on this legislation and he has offered to some of the scenarios
presented to him, how the Department would be able to address different situations and
scenarios, and it is difficult to write legislation certainly to cover every unforeseen and
unpredictable situation. But at the same time, and I know the Department is trying to stay away
from, you know, continuing this legislation because it's anxious to get this in the books so that
it can be applied. Listening to the Members this morning and reading the correspondence
offered to us by members of the public, it seems like we still have a lot of questions or
uncertainties and concerns about the proposal that we're looking at this morning. So, I think,
for the Members that would like to see some clarification or be able to research some of the
information that, and concerns that were raised, I included, the Chair would like to, at this time,
make a recommendation, Members.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Recommendation? . . . (end of tape, start 2B at 10:44 a.m.). . .
CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: The Chair, at this point, without objections, would like to defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
ACTION: DEFER

CO-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, no objections. So at this time, we concluded with PWF-83 and that
is the last item we have on our agenda. Members, I want to thank Director Arakawa for his
work on this and his presence this morning; along with Mr. Kushi from Corp. Counsel; and also
our Committee Staff for being here, Ms. Martins and Mr. Jensen. And thank you, Members,
for your presence, so that we're allowed to have a quorum to be here. Any announcements,
Members? Okay. Seeing none, at this time, the meeting of the Public Works and Facilities
Committee of October 29, 2008, is now adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 10:45 a.m.
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